
                                  

AGENDA
For a meeting of the

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
to be held on

THURSDAY, 1 DECEMBER 2016
at

2.00 PM
in the

WITHAM ROOM - COUNCIL OFFICES, ST. PETER'S HILL, 
GRANTHAM. NG31 6PZ

Beverly Agass, Chief Executive    

Committee
Members:

Councillor Matthew Lee, Councillor David Mapp, Councillor 
Nick Neilson (Chairman), Councillor Jacky Smith, Councillor 
Adam Stokes, Councillor Brian Sumner and Councillor Paul 
Wood

Committee Support
Officer:

Jo Toomey Tel: 01476 406152
E-mail: j.toomey@southkesteven.gov.uk

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed below.

1. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee to be notified of any substitute members.

2. APOLOGIES

3. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting.

4. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 23 SEPTEMBER

(Enclosure)

5. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING



6. ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER

(Enclosure)

7. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

Report number CFM400 of the Corporate Finance Manager. (Enclosure)

(1) Internal Audit Progress Report

(2) Internal Audit Follow-Up Report

8. CORPORATE RISK REGISTER UPDATE

Report number CFM401 of the Corporate Finance Manager. (Enclosure)

9. TREASURY MID-YEAR REVIEW

Report number CFM398 of the Corporate Finance Manager. (Enclosure)

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS, WHICH THE CHAIRMAN, BY REASONS OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES, DECIDES IS URGENT.



MINUTES
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE
FRIDAY, 23 SEPTEMBER 2016

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT

Councillor Matthew Lee
Councillor Nick Neilson (Chairman)
Councillor Bob Sampson

Councillor Jacky Smith
Councillor Adam Stokes
Councillor Brian Sumner

OFFICERS OTHER MEMBERS

Strategic Director (Daren Turner)
Executive Manager, Corporate (Lucy 
Youles)
Financial Accountant Team Leader (Amy 
Oliver)
Governance and Risk Officer (Tracey 
Elliott)
Principal Democracy Officer (Jo Toomey)

Councillor Terl Bryant – Executive 
Member, Resources
Councillor Mrs. Frances Cartwright – 
Executive Member, Governance

AUDIT

Mike Norman (Audit Manager, KPMG)
Chris Williams (Head of Internal Audit, 
RSM)

22. MEMBERSHIP

The Committee was notified that Councillor Sampson was substituting for 
Councillor Wood for this meeting only.

23. APOLOGIES

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Mapp. Councillor Adams, 
the Leader of the Council also apologised that he was unable to attend the 
meeting.

24. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

No interests were disclosed.

25. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28 JULY 2016

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 July 2016 were proposed, seconded 

Agenda Item 4



2

and agreed as a correct record.

26. UPDATES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING

Members of the Committee were advised that the recommendations relating to 
aids and adaptations and tenancy management, which had been scheduled for 
implementation by August 2016 and September 2016 respectively, would be 
included in the follow-up report scheduled to be undertaken in October and 
reported to the Committee at its meeting on 1 December 2016.

The Committee had also requested that the Scrutiny Committee look at the 
process for green bin renewals and encouraging customers to pay for their 
green bin by direct debit. This item had been considered by the Scrutiny 
Committee at its meeting on 13 September 2016. Members were advised that 
the action notes summarising the deliberations of the Scrutiny Committee had 
now been published.

27. ANNUAL GOVERNANCE REPORT 2015/16

Mike Norman from KPMG presented the Annual Governance Report 2015/16. 
He stated that KPMG anticipated giving an unqualified opinion on the Council’s 
2015/16 accounts and would report that the Annual Governance Statement 
was consistent with the guidance issued by CIPFA/SOLACE. Audit Standards 
required External Audit to report on certain categories of adjustments; Mr. 
Norman stated that no material mistakes had been identified and that there 
were no uncorrected or non-material differences that needed to be brought to 
members’ attention. 

External Audit was required to identify potentially significant financial risks as 
part of the External Audit Plan 2015/16. The key risk identified for South 
Kesteven District Council related to the level of provisioning for business rate 
appeals; this was reflected nationally. This issue had been highlighted 
nationally as the value could be material and the provision could only be based 
on estimates and assumptions. No concerns were raised following the testing 
of the provision made by South Kesteven District Council. Examination was 
also undertaken of two standard risks identified as part of professional 
standards, regarding revenue recognition and management override of 
controls; there were no issues to report in relation to either.

In advising members about the accounts production process, Mr. Norman 
stated that the draft accounts were received well ahead of the 30 June 2016 
deadline and that External Audit had no concerns about regarding accounting 
policies, accounting estimates and financial statement disclosures. The 
requested working papers were supplied at the start of the audit progress and 
the officer response to requests for further working papers was efficient.

The report stated that KPMG was satisfied with the progress the authority had 
made in relation to the recommendations in its ISA 260 Report 2014/15 relating 
to the financial statements and that consequently they would not be rolled over. 



3

External Audit was required to provide a separate value for money conclusion. 
No significant risks were identified. The report stated that KPMG anticipated 
issuing an unqualified value for money conclusion by 30 September 2016.

The report also highlighted the next steps that would be taken to complete the 
audit. Subject to the Committee approving the Financial Statements and the 
letter of representation, External Audit expected to complete the remainder of 
procedures in time to allow the publication of the accounts on the Council’s 
website by 30 September 2016.

Finally, Mr. Norman confirmed that all the requirements relating to objectivity 
and independence had been complied with.

Following completion of the audit, a de-brief session would be held between 
KPMG and SKDC officers to identify any improvements that could be made to 
carry out the audit more effectively in future years.

Members were given the opportunity to ask questions about the report. One of 
the key questions related to the level of materiality, which was £1.2m. This was 
based on 1.5% of the organisation’s gross expenditure; a lower level of 
performance materiality would then be set, which would influence the bulk of 
testing and sample size. A number of factors were taken into account in 
determining materiality including an authority’s governance arrangements, 
internal controls and the level of risk attached to its activities.

Members were pleased with the contents of the report, adding that they felt it 
reflected the diligence and hard work of officers. The Committee noted the 
contents of the report and expressed their gratitude to the Council’s officers. 
Members’ thanks was also extended to External Audit for its work.

28. STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS 2015/16

Decision:

The Governance and Audit Committee 

1. Approves the revised Statement of Accounts 2015/16 as per 
appendix 1 of report number CFM384 and as amended by the 
addendum circulated at the meeting

2. Notes the commentary on the outcome of audit work

3. Approves the publication of the summary of accounts on the 
Council’s website

4. Approves the signing of the Letter of Representation

The Financial Accountant Team Leader introduced report number CFM384 
which presented the Council’s Statement of Accounts 2015/16. It covered 
requirements of the Account and Audit (England) Regulations 2015, Section 
21(2) of the Local Government Act 2003, the revised Statement of Accounts 



4

and commentary on the outcome of the audit of the Statement of Accounts. An 
addendum was also circulated to members at the meeting. Members were 
reminded that the draft Accounts were presented to the Committee at its 
meeting on 28 July 2016.

During discussion on the Statement of Accounts, one member asked a 
question about the way Section 106 Agreements were recorded; they were 
shown in the accounts amongst grants and contributions that had yet to be 
recognised as income. They were recorded in this way as the release of the 
funding was triggered by thresholds within developments and payable for 
specific activities. Failure to deliver the output by the deadline would mean that 
the funding was lost. Members were reassured that a register was kept of all 
Section 106 Agreements, which included their expiry dates. Proactive 
monitoring of trigger points and expiry dates to ensure monies were released 
and spent.

The actuarial gains and losses shown on the Comprehensive Income and 
Expenditure Statement were also subject to discussion. Assumptions were 
made on a 3-yearly basis and 2015/16 fell at the end of that period. The 
changes reflected the differences between the financial and demographic 
assumptions made in 2013/14 and the position at year end in 2015/16.  Officers 
explained that the estimates would be more accurate for the 2016/17 as it 
would be the start of a new 3-year cycle. Members also noted that the Council 
had benefited after the last review from making a lump sum payment and it was 
suggested that a similar opportunity might be available following the next 
review.

A question was raised about whether any of the leases where the Council was 
an interested party had break clauses that could impact valuations.

Some discussion ensued on the proposed change of wording for the Annual 
Governance Statement (AGS) that was detailed in the addendum. An 
explanation was given that much of the wording in the AGS was based on a 
generic template and it was felt that the revised wording better reflected the 
governance position of the Council, particularly when taking account of the 
comments raised in the Annual Governance Report.

13:38 – Councillor Lee entered the meeting

The three recommendations listed in report number CFM384 were proposed, 
seconded and on being put to the vote, were agreed.

13:39-13:55 – the meeting adjourned

Following the adjournment, it was proposed and seconded that the Letter of 
Representation be signed. On being put to the vote, the Committee approved 
the signing of the document.



5

29. INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT

The Internal Audit Progress Report was attached to report number CFM388, 
which was introduced by the Governance and Risk Officer. A more detailed 
summary of the work undertaken between 1 April 2016 and 23 September 
2016 was presented by Chris Williams from RSM.

In that period, three reports had been issued, with a further two produced in 
draft format. The three audits related to health and safety – asbestos (three low 
risk and 1 medium risk recommendations raised), taxi licensing (1 medium and 
1 low risk recommendations raised) and rent collection (four low and 1 medium 
risk recommendations raised). Details about the recommendations were 
included in the RSM report. All three audits were given a green opinion.

One of the recommendations arising from the rent collection audit related to the 
debt sign-off authorisation limits. Members wanted assurance that the incident 
in the rent collection team were not replicated across the Council. Members 
were advised that the write-off levels had been revised as part of the new 
Financial Regulations which were adopted by Council on 22 April 2016 and that 
all staff were aware of their authorised limits.

Discussion moved to the audit on health and safety – asbestos. Members 
highlighted a comment in the Internal Audit report which stated that from a 
sample of 20 asbestos removals, it was noted in two cases that the asbestos 
was collected and a consignment note issued, however a Statement of 
Cleanliness had not been received from the asbestos contractor. This caused 
concern for members from the perspective that unnecessary expenditure may 
be incurred re-surveying a property for which there is no Statement. The 
Committee also recognised that Statements from historic reviews would also be 
required to prevent unnecessary duplication and to ensure that they were still 
current. Members asked that the Business Manager, Property and 
Development provide a written statement confirming that both the consignment 
note and the Statement of Cleanliness were kept on file. Members also 
requested that Internal Audit follow-up the recommendations as part of their 
next follow-up in October 2016 with feedback to be presented at the meeting of 
the Committee on 1 December 2016.

The audit of taxi licensing also prompted discussion. Members were concerned 
about taxi drivers who had points on their driving licences, highlighting 
specifically the risk of reputational damage. Mr. Williams reassured members of 
the Committee that Internal Audit was comfortable with the way the authority 
had responded to the recommendation and that management and officers had 
taken the matter seriously and were taking immediate action. Discussion 
moved to ongoing checks of taxi drivers, including DBS checks together with 
other measures put in place to safeguard children. 

Members requested an update on the planned audit of IT resilience. They were 
advised that the date for the audit had now been agreed and the specification 
was being drawn-up.



6

The Committee noted the report.

30. DELIVERING GOOD GOVERNANCE

In presenting report number CM382, the Governance and Risk Officer 
explained that the new local code of corporate governance was being reviewed 
in line with the ‘Delivering Good Governance’ framework. The framework 
continued to be based around key principles with multiple sub-principles but 
moved away from the ‘nuts and bolts’ of good governance to a ‘hearts and 
minds’ approach, acknowledging that local authorities already had the 
components in place but it was about embedding them.

Once revised, the Code would underpin the Annual Governance Statement. A 
document template had been produced which was being completed and would 
be presented to the Committee at its meeting on 1 December 2016. 

Members noted the report.

31. COUNTER FRAUD ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

Decision:

That the Governance and Audit Committee approves the contents of the 
Counter-fraud Annual Report 2015/16, including the action plan.

Report number CFM383, which was the Counter Fraud Annual Report 2015/16 
provided a summary of the counter-fraud activity that had taken place during 
the year. The report, which was presented by the Governance and Risk Officer 
also included statistical information, providing a breakdown of the number of 
penalties and prosecutions. During the year there had been 11 whistle-blowing 
reports which included several made through the confidential telephone 
reporting line run by Lincolnshire County Council. No significant concerns had 
been raised about claims made against the Council’s insurance during the 
year. 

Training activity was scheduled to be rolled out, including an e-learning 
package, as part of the Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership.

Information was shared in relation to national fraud developments and any 
incidents of concern that were happening on a countywide basis. A document 
was also available that would help the authority check how it was performing 
and identify areas for further proactive work. 

During discussion on the item, members asked whether the savings made from 
preventing fraud and income received from penalties offset the cost of counter-
fraud activity. 

Members asked whether the counter-fraud e-learning module would be 
available for councillors to complete. As an aside, members spoke about 



7

safeguarding e-learning for Councillors, the importance of safeguarding training 
for members and the need for further provision.

It was proposed, seconded and, on being put to the vote, agreed that the 
Committee approve the contents of the Counter-Fraud Annual Report, including 
the action plan.

32. OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REPORT 2015/16

The Executive Manager, Corporate summarised report number LDS184 which 
informed the Committee about the contents of the Ombudsman Annual Review 
Letter for 2015/16, which was appended to the report. She explained that there 
had been 9 complaints received by the Ombudsman during the review period, 
which compared favourably with 2014/15 when 22 complaints had been 
received. This reduction was attributed to the way in which the Council now 
dealt with complaints: working proactively with the customer before entering 
into the formal complaints process. Of the 9 complaints that were received, 
three were referred back for local resolution, five were closed after initial 
enquiries were made with the Council and the final complaint was not upheld.

Some concern was expressed about the format of the letter used by the 
Ombudsman. While recognising that the letter template was standardised, 
members felt that recording complaints for which another body was responsible 
did not provide a fair reflection. They highlighted complaints that had been 
made about adult care services and highways and transport, which were the 
responsibility of Lincolnshire County Council.

The report was noted.

33. EXTERNAL AUDIT PROCUREMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Decision:

The Governance and Audit Committee recommends to Council the 
appointment of external Audit through a national sector led body the 
Public Sector Audit Appointments

Following a report at the Committee’s last meeting on 28 July 2016, members 
were asked to make a recommendation to full Council about the procurement 
arrangements for External Audit following the closure of the Audit Commission 
and the end of transitional arrangements at the conclusion of 2017/18 audits.

Report number CFM385, which was presented by the Financial Accountant 
Team Leader, summarised three different ways through which external audit 
services could be procured. At its meeting in July, the Committee had indicated 
it had a preference for opting in to a sector-led body. Members reiterated that 
this was their preferred option; it was proposed, seconded and agreed that this 
approach should be recommended to full Council.



8

34. TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY AMENDMENT

Decision:

The Governance and Audit Committee approves the amendments to the 
Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17 detailed within report number 
CFM386.

Report number CFM386 asked members to consider changes to the Treasury 
Management Strategy which would allow the Council to place investments in 
any institution or building society for no more than 3 years (an increase from 
two years), and to increase the total investments that could be held in building 
societies from £6m to £10m to ensure that the Council’s investment portfolio is 
balanced between types of investment. Appendix A to the report included 
amendments relating to the non-specified investments section of the Strategy 
to provide clarification and enable the Council to be able to respond to changes 
in economic conditions as they occur. 

Members of the Committee were supportive of the proposals; the 
recommendation as laid out in the report was proposed, seconded and, on 
being put to the vote, agreed.

35. CLOSE OF MEETING

The meeting was closed at 15:08.



Annual Audit 
Letter 
2015/16

South Kesteven District Council
—

October 2016

A
genda Item

 6



2

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The contacts at KPMG 
in connection with this 
report are:

John Cornett
Director

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0116 256 6064
john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk

Mike Norman
Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0115 945 3554
michael.norman@kpmg.co.uk

Kerry Sharma
Assistant Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0115 945 3652
kerry.sharma@kpmg.co.uk

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual 
capacities, or to third parties. Public Sector Audit Appointments issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where 
the responsibilities of auditors begin and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on Public Sector Audit 
Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should 
contact John Cornett, the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead 
partner for all of KPMG’s work under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Andrew Sayers (andrew.sayers@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if you are still 
dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 
7445 or by writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

Contents

Page

Report sections

— Headlines 3

Appendices

1. Summary of reports issued

2. Audit fees

5

6



3

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This Annual Audit Letter 
summarises the outcome 
from our audit work at South 
Kesteven District Council in 
relation to their 2015/16 audit 
year.

Although it is addressed to 
Members of the Authority, it 
is also intended to 
communicate these key 
messages to key external 
stakeholders, including 
members of the public, and 
will be placed on the 
Authority’s website.

Headlines
Section one

VFM 
conclusion

We issued an unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money (VFM conclusion) for 2015/16 on 29
September 2016. This means we are satisfied that during the year that Authority had proper arrangements for informed decision
making, sustainable resource deployment and working with partners and third parties. 

VFM risk 
areas

Our initial risk assessment took into account the Authority’s key business risks which are relevant to our VFM conclusion. We identified 
the Authority’s arrangements for sustainable resource deployment as a particular area of focus for the assessment. The Authority
continues to face similar financial pressures and uncertainties to those experienced by others in the local government sector. The 
Authority needs to have effective arrangements in place for managing its annual budget, generating income and identifying and
implementing any savings required to balance its medium term financial plan.

We considered the Authority’s arrangements for managing its annual budget and the 2015/16 outturn. The outturn was largely as
expected and no significant concerns had been highlighted in the current year monitoring reports. We also specifically considered: 

• The Authority’s arrangements for preparing and updating its medium term financial plans. The Authority has continued with its
medium term planning framework and the balanced 2016/17 budget, and 2017/18 and 2018/19 indicative budgets, were approved 
in February 2016. The plans have been updated to reflect the financial and policy context within which the Authority operates.. 

• The actions being taken by the Authority to achieve savings and efficiencies. The Authority has continued to review budgets and 
working arrangements and seek opportunities for income generation. The 2016/17 budget incorporates around £1.5m in savings 
from these actions. 

• The Authority’s actions as part of its ‘fit for the future’ strategy to make sustainable changes from 2016/17 onwards in support of its 
move from dependence on national funding support towards a self-financing model. Key elements of this planned response include 
a commercial investment strategy, setting up a local authority controlled company, service transformation and partnering of services. 
We will continue to monitor progress and take these activities into account as part of future years’ value for money conclusion work.   

We were satisfied that  sufficient work in relation to these matters was being carried out by the Authority to mitigate the audit risks for 
our VFM conclusion. We concluded that we did not need to carry out any specific additional work ourselves.

Audit 
opinion

We issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s financial statements on 29 September 2016. This means that we believe the 
financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and of its expenditure and income for the year. 



4

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This Annual Audit Letter 
summarises the outcome 
from our audit work at South 
Kesteven District Council in 
relation to their 2015/16 audit 
year.

Although it is addressed to 
Members of the Authority, it 
is also intended to 
communicate these key 
messages to key external 
stakeholders, including 
members of the public, and 
will be placed on the 
Authority’s website.

Headlines (cont.)
Section one

Annual 
Governance 
Statement

We reviewed your Annual Governance Statement and concluded that it was not misleading or inconsistent with other information we are 
aware of from our audit of the financial statements.

Whole of 
Government 
Accounts

The Authority prepares a consolidation pack to support the production of Whole of Government Accounts by HM Treasury. We are not
required to review your pack in detail as the Authority falls below the threshold where an audit is required. As required by the guidance 
we have confirmed this with the National Audit Office. 

Certificate We issued our certificate on 29 September 2016. The certificate confirms that we have concluded the audit for 2015/16 in accordance 
with the requirements of the Local Audit & Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice. 

Audit fee Our fee for the 2015/16 audit was £47,273, excluding VAT (£62,130 in 2014/15). Further detail is contained in Appendix 2.



5

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This appendix summarises 
the reports we issued since 
our last Annual Audit Letter.

Appendix 1: Summary of reports issued
Appendices

2016

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

The External Audit Plan set out our approach to the 
audit of the Authority’s financial statements and to 
work to support the VFM conclusion. 

External Audit Plan (March 2016)

The Audit Fee Letter set out the proposed audit 
work and draft fee for the 2016/17 financial year. 

Audit Fee Letter (April 2016)

The Auditor’s Report included our audit opinion on 
the financial statements along with our VFM 
conclusion and our certificate.

Auditor’s Report (September 2016)

This report on summarised the outcome of our 
certification work on the Authority’s 2014/15 grants 
and returns.

Certification of Grants and Returns           
(January 2016)

The Report to Those Charged with Governance 
summarised the results of our audit work for 
2015/16 including key issues and recommendations 
raised as a result of our observations.

We also provided the mandatory declarations 
required under auditing standards as part of this 
report.

Report to Those Charged with Governance 
(September 2016)

This Annual Audit Letter provides a summary of the 
results of our audit for 2015/16.

Annual Audit Letter (October 2016)



6

Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a 
Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

This appendix provides 
information on our final fees 
for the 2015/16 audit.

To ensure transparency about the extent of our fee relationship with the Authority we have summarised below the outturn against the 
2015/16 planned audit fee, and the other fees charged in the year.

External audit

Our final fee for the 2015/16 audit of the Authority was £47,273, excluding VAT (£62,130 in 2014/15). This was is in line with the planned 
fee. 

Certification of grants and returns 

Under our terms of engagement with Public Sector Audit Appointments we undertake prescribed work in order to certify the Authority’s 
housing benefit grant claim. This certification work is still ongoing. The final fee will be confirmed through our reporting on the outcome of 
that work in January 2017.
Other services

During 2015/16 we charged £3,000 for additional audit-related services for our Accountant’s Report relating to the 2014/15 Pooling of 
Housing Capital Receipts Return, which is outside of Public Sector Audit Appointment’s certification regime.

Appendix 2: Audit fees
Appendices



Document Classification: KPMG Confidential

The KPMG name and logo are registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. 

© 2016 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

kpmg.com/appkpmg.com/socialmedia



Page 1 

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF:  CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER 

REPORT NO: CFM400

DATE:    1 December 2016

TITLE: Internal Audit Progress Report:
24 September 2016 – 17 November 2016

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

None

EXECUTIVE MEMBER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Councillor Mrs Frances Cartwright
Executive Member Governance

CONTACT OFFICER: Richard Wyles
Corporate Finance Manager
r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk
Tel: (01476) 406210

INITIAL IMPACT
ANALYSIS:

Equality and Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) below:

N/A

Full impact assessment
Required:

No
FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and 
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS None

1. RECOMMENDATION

Governance and Audit Committee is requested to review and note the contents of the 
attached progress report that has been prepared by the internal auditors RSM.  
 
2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

This is the first in a series of regular in-year progress reports summarising the results 
of work undertaken by the internal audit service. This report covers the period from 24 
September 2016 to 17 November 2016.  

Agenda Item 7

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/


Page 2 

3. DETAILS OF REPORT 

Introduction and Background

In accordance with Public Sector Internal Audit Standards the internal audit service 
provides assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the authority’s governance, 
risk management and control arrangements. The opinion provided within individual 
reports issued to management contributes towards an annual audit opinion that forms 
part of the framework of assurances that informs the Council’s Annual Governance 
Statement.

Summary of Work Undertaken from 24 September 2016 to 17 November 2016

The internal audit plan for 2016-17 was approved by this Committee on 24 March 
2016 and this report provides details of progress against the plan – see Appendix A.

A Follow Up audit has also been undertaken and this is attached as Appendix B.  A 
representative from RSM will be in attendance at the meeting to present and respond 
to any questions raised by members in relation to the key findings in their reports.

Number of Management Actions

Audited Area Opinion

Lo
w

M
ed

iu
m

H
ig

h

To
ta

l

A
cc

ep
te

d 

Environmental Health Green - 1 - 1 1

Council Tax Support 
Scheme Green 1 - - 1 1

Financial Regulations Green 1 1 - 2 2

IT Network Resilience & 
Recovery Amber/Green 1 3 - 4 4

Total 3 5 - 8 8
38% 62% - 100%

Follow Up Reasonable 
Progress - 4 - 4 4

Key Points to Note:

Of the four audits completed a total of 8 management actions have been raised and 
accepted by management. Of the 8 management actions raised, one has already been 
implemented.  The latest position on implementation is summarised below:

Environmental Health
Implementation of the management action is almost complete and will be implemented 
before its due date.



Page 3 

Council Tax Support Scheme
Management action is not yet due.

Financial Regulations
The medium management action has been implemented; the other low management 
action will be implemented once the regulations are next reviewed – 2019 at the latest.

IT Network Resilience & Disaster Recovery
All management actions are not yet due.

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/budget, 
people, land/property etc.

6. RISK AND MITIGATION 

None

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS

None

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None

9. COMMENTS OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

These are included in the report.

10. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations require every local authority to maintain an adequate and effective internal 
audit service that would include a review of progress. Those charged with governance 
are asked to review the contents of the attached report which summarises the work 
undertaken by the internal auditors that provides a review of the progress for the 
period from 24 September 2016 – 17 November 2016.

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES

None

12.     APPENDICES:

Appendix A – Internal Audit Progress Report prepared by RSM



Page 2 

Appendix B – Internal Audit Follow Up Report prepared by RSM 



 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Internal Audit Progress Report 

Governance and Audit Committee 

1 December 2016 
 

 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept                                                                        

no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 

Page 1 of 25 Agenda Item 7a



     

 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

CONTENTS 
1 Introduction ................................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Reports considered at this Governance and Audit Committee .................................................................................... 3 

3 Looking ahead .............................................................................................................................................................. 6 

4 Other matters ............................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Appendix A: Internal audit assignments completed to date .............................................................................................. 8 

For further information contact .......................................................................................................................................... 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical 
and other professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 
 
The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily 
a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. 
 
Recommendations for improvements should be assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented. This report, or 
our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. 
We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and our work should not be 
relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should our work be relied upon to identify all 
circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 
 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes set out herein.  This report should not 
therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance 
Services LLP for any purpose or in any context. Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on 
it (or any part of it) will do so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no 
responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of 
whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on representations in this report 
 
This report is released to our Client on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as 
otherwise permitted by agreed written terms), without our prior written consent.  
 
We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report.  
 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 

Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB.

Page 2 of 25



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

1 INTRODUCTION 

The internal audit plan 2016/17 was approved by the Governance and Audit Committee on 24 March 2016 and 

included a total of 18 planned reviews. 

This report provides a summary update on progress against that plan and summarises the results of our work to date. 

Please see chart below for progress against the plan. 

 

 

50% 6% 44% 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

1

Assignments Complete Assignments in Progress Assignments Not Yet Due

Page 3 of 25



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

2 REPORTS CONSIDERED AT THIS GOVERNANCE 
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE 

This table informs of the audit assignments that have been completed since the last Governance and Audit 

Committee. 

The Executive Summary and Key Findings of the assignments below are attached to this progress report. 

Assignment Status Opinion issued 
Actions agreed 

L M H 

Environmental Health – Pollution 
Control (5.16/17)  

Final 

 

0 1 0 

Council Tax Support Scheme (6.16/17) Final 

 

1 0 0 

Financial Regulations (7.16/17) Final 

 

1 1 0 

IT Network Resilience and Recovery 
(8.16/17) 

Final 

 

1 3 0 

Follow Up 2 (9.16/17) * Final Reasonable Progress 0 4 0 

 

*Follow Up report presented to Governance and Audit Committee separately. 

Page 4 of 25



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

2.1 Impact of findings to date 

 

Environmental Health – Pollution Control 

Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken one medium priority finding was identified. 

Management action was agreed in respect of the finding. 

The medium finding related to: 

 The Corporate Enforcement Policy had not been reviewed with no evidence of version controlled being 

applied to confirm that it had been reviewed on an annual basis as per the requirements of the policy. 

Furthermore there is presently no ownership for this policy. In the absence of a nominated officer owning the 

policy, there is a risk that the policy is not maintained up to date and in line with current working practices.  

 

 

Council Tax Support Scheme 

Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken one finding was identified of a low priority. 

Management actions was agreed in respect of the finding. 

 

 

Financial Regulations 

Conclusion: Substantial Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken two findings were identified; one medium and one low priority. 

Management actions were agreed in respect of both findings. 

The medium finding related to: 

 The Financial Regulations were implemented in April 2016. In the absence of NETconsent the Council was 

unable to monitor whether employees had read and accepted the Financial Regulations. By not having a 

mechanism in place to monitor acceptance and understanding there is a risk that Line Managers cannot 

monitor whether officers have read and fully understood the Financial Regulations and associated policies.   

Page 5 of 25



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

 

IT Network Resilience and Recovery 

Conclusion: Reasonable Assurance 

Impact on Annual Opinion: Positive 

As a result of testing undertaken four findings were identified; three medium and one low priority. 

Management actions were agreed in respect of all the findings. 

The medium findings related to: 

 There is no business impact analysis where 'long term computer failure' has been fully assessed for impact 

and likelihood.  There is also no further detailed analysis to determine Maximum Tolerable Period of 

Disruption (MTPD) for the critical IT functions at SKDC, including critical systems or those given a priority of 

1 within the IT Services – Service Level Agreement should a disaster occur.  

The Recovery Time Objectives (RTO's) have also not been determined and documented alongside each 

critical IT system and function within the Disaster Recovery Plan. 

 

 The IT Disaster Recovery Plan is not tested on a regular basis to ensure that IT systems can be effectively 

recovered, shortcomings are addressed and the plan remains relevant. 

 

 A copy of backup policy was provided, and found to inadequately document how tape backups are currently 

performed and checked onsite at SKDC as the document had not been reviewed since February 2012.  The 

revision history section of the document had also not been completed to show the date of next intended 

review. The Backup Policy does not include VMware backups to disc, only tape backups. 

 

Page 6 of 25



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

3 LOOKING AHEAD 

Assignment area Planned 
commencement date 

Status 

Cash and Bank 7 November 2016 In Progress 

Income and Debtors 9 January 2017  

Absence Management 9 January 2017  

Purchase Orders and Creditors 16 January 2017  

Procurement and Contracts 23 January 2017  

Follow Up 3 6 February 2017  

Allocations and Lettings 20 February 2017  

Geographical Information System (GIS) 20 February 2017  

Governance 6 March 2017  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7 of 25



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

4 OTHER MATTERS 

4.1 Changes to the audit plan 

There have been no changes to the audit plan to date. 

 

Page 8 of 25



 

 South Kesteven District Council Internal Audit Progress Report  

APPENDIX A: INTERNAL AUDIT ASSIGNMENTS 
COMPLETED TO DATE 

Report previously seen by the Governance and Audit Committee and included for information purposes only: 

Assignment Status Opinion issued 
Actions agreed 

L M H 

Follow Up 1 (1.16/17) Final REASONABLE PROGRESS 1 4 0 

Health and Safety - Asbestos 
(2.16/17)  

Final 

 

3 1 0 

Taxi Licensing (3.16/17) Final 

 

1 1 0 

Rent Collection (4.16/17) Final 

 

4 1 0 

Page 9 of 25



 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

chris.williams@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07753 584 993 

 

Robert Barnett, Director 

robert.barnett@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07791 237 658 

 

Amjad Ali, Client Manager 

amjad.ali@rsmuk.com 

Tel: 07800 617 139 

 

Address: 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 

Suite A, 7th Floor 

City Gate East 

Tollhouse Hill 

Nottingham NG1 5FS 

Phone: 0115 964 4450 

 

Page 10 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council Environmental Health - Pollution Control 5.16/17 

1.1 Background  

An audit of Environmental Health - Pollution Control was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit periodic 
plan for 2016/17. 

South Kesteven District Council use the Civica APP system to record all information in relation to pollution. The 
Environmental Health Team is made up of a Team Leader and two Environmental Health Officers who are responsible 
for the day to day activities in relation to pollution within the District. The Environmental Health Team are also 
responsible for responding to the following issues to help protect the environment and the public: 

 Noise (including, loud music, barking dogs, construction sites, intruder alarms and commercial premises); 

 Artificial Light; 

 Smoke and smells; 

 Air Quality; and 

 Contaminated Land. 

Complaints can be made via telephone or email to Customer Services or directly to Environmental Health. All 
complaints are logged onto the Civica APP system. Neighbours or the suspected offenders are encouraged to resolve 
issues themselves. Where the problem persists the complainant is required to maintain diary notes for a period of time 
to assess how long the issue has gone on for. If the pollution is a nuisance in law (statutory nuisance) a notice can be 
served under the Environmental protection Act 1990 to allow the pollution to be stopped.  

  

1.2 Conclusion 

Our review found that South Kesteven District Council have a robust control framework in place, however, we found 

that there is no clear ownership of the Corporate Enforcement Policy and such it has not been reviewed on an annual 

basis to ensure it reflects current working practices.  

Internal Audit Opinion: 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 

substantial assurance that the controls upon which the 

organisation relies to manage the identified risks are suitably 

designed, consistently applied and operating effectively. 

 

 
 

 

  

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH – POLLUTION CONTROL - 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 11 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council Environmental Health - Pollution Control 5.16/17 

1.3 Key findings 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

 The Council have a membership with the Regulatory Information and Management Systems (RIAMS). This 
provides regular updated procedures, documents, notices and publications for Environmental Health. The 
Environmental Health Team have access to RIAMS to allow procedure notes for day to day tasks to be obtained. 

 All members of the Environmental Health Team have had appropriate training to undertake their role and 
responsibilities. In addition to this, officers also attend ad hoc training sessions in relation to environmental health 
throughout the year.  

 The Council maintains a register of all businesses within the district which require licensing and inspection. 

 The Council makes appropriate information available to the public to facilitate the complaints and reporting 
process. 

 Testing a sample of ten businesses that require an environmental permit found that in all instances the annual fee 
charged for each permit was in line with the 2016/17 fees set by DEFRA. In all instances a risk assessment had 
been conducted and an inspection had been completed.   

 Testing a sample of 15 complaints found that in all instances complaints were responded to within five working 
days and action taken was appropriate and in line with procedures.  

 

We have also agreed one medium priority management action. Details of this can be found in the Section 2 of this 

report. 

  

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 

Risk Control 

design* 

Compliance 

with 

controls* 

Agreed actions 

   Low Medium High 

Failure to enforce all laws and regulations relating to 

pollution. 
0 (7) 1 (7) 0 1 0 

Fees charged are not in accordance with the 

approved / published scale of charges. 
0 (5) 0 (5) 0 0 0 

Failure to investigate complaints within set 

deadlines. 
0 (3) 0 (3) 0 0 0 

Total   0 1 0 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 

reviewed in this area. 

 

  

Page 12 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council Environmental Health - Pollution Control 5.16/17 

2 ACTION PLAN 

Categorisation of internal audit findings 

Priority Definition 

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality. 

Medium Timely management attention is necessary.  This is an internal control risk management issue that could 

lead to: Financial losses which could affect the effective function of a department, loss of controls or 

process being audited or possible reputational damage, negative publicity in local or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary.  This is a serious internal control or risk management 

issue that may, with a high degree of certainty, lead to: Substantial losses, violation of corporate 

strategies, policies or values, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media 

or adverse regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines. 

 

The table below sets out the actions agreed by management to address the findings: 

Ref Findings summary Priority Actions for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

Risk: Failure to enforce all laws and regulations relating to Pollution. 

1 Review of the Corporate 

Enforcement Policy found 

that it had not been 

reviewed, nor was there 

any evidence of version 

control to suggest it had 

been reviewed on an 

annual basis as stated in 

the policy.  

 

Furthermore, we 

identified that at present 

there is no ownership for 

the policy.  

 

In the absence of a 

nominated officer owning 

the policy there is a risk 

that the policy is not 

maintained up to date 

and in line with current 

working practices 

throughout the Council.  

Medium Legal and Democratic are 

responsible for owning the 

policy and they will 

coordinate a review of the 

policy to ensure it is in line 

with current working 

practices. 

31 January 2017 

 

 

Business 

Manager - Legal 

and Democratic   

Page 13 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council Council Tax Support Scheme 6.16/17  

1.1 Background  

From 1 April 2013 the Government abolished the national Council Tax Benefit scheme. Instead Councils were asked 

to develop their own local scheme to support working-age people on a low income to pay their Council Tax, with the 

Government still setting the rules for pensioners. Councils receive less funding from the Government under the new 

scheme. Approximately 600 new claims for Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS) have been received, assessed and 

processed since 1 April 2016, and in total 10,300 residents on a low-income are in receipt of CTSS within the district. 

The Scheme provides financial assistance to Council Tax Charge payers on a low income whether they rent or own 

their home, or live rent-free, by reducing the amount of Council Tax they have to pay. The amount of support to which 

a claimant is entitled is dependent on their income, personal circumstances and applicable amounts. The applicable 

amount is the amount of money the Government has determined as being required to live on each week.  

1.2 Conclusion 

We confirmed that the systems and controls reviewed were both well designed and applied consistently. We identified 

one weakness to the control framework, and a ‘low’ priority management action was agreed to remedy this. 

Internal Audit Opinion: 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 

substantial assurance that the controls upon which the 

organisation relies to manage the identified risk are suitably 

designed, consistently applied and operating effectively. 

 

 
 

1.3 Key findings 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

The Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS) within the Council is governed by the Council Tax Reduction Scheme Rules 

which were initially developed in 2013 through amending the previous existing government legislation to allow local 

billing authorities the right to set their own local scheme. The original Rules were subject to consultation with the 

public, and were approved by Full Council on 13 December 2012, coming into effect on 1 April 2013.  

Training was provided to staff when the Council first adopted the CTSS. New staff who have since joined the Council 

Tax and Benefits departments have also been trained by shadowing experienced staff. Staff in other departments 

which would need knowledge of the Rules were also trained, such as Customer Services, Housing Solutions and 

Rents.  

Testing of a sample of 20 claims from total claims received since April 2016 found that evidence was held on the 

document management solution to support the claim, and the details on the evidence had been input into the 

processing system correctly for calculation Each entitlement had been calculated from the correct date based on the 

original intention to claim was known. All applications were processed in a timely manner and the applicant advised of 

the outcome. 

COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME - EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY 

Page 14 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council Council Tax Support Scheme 6.16/17  

 

A sample of applications is re-assessed by a different officer to that completing the initial assessment. Each Benefit 

Assessor has a different percentage of their cases checked by a Supervisor or Team Leader depending on their level 

of experience to ensure they have followed procedure and assessed the claim accuracy. New staff have 100% of their 

cases checked, reducing to 10% for experienced staff. 

The parameters set within the processing system were found to accurately reflect the content of the Scheme Rules. In 

all 20 claims sampled the value calculated as being the amount claimants were entitled corresponded to value applied 

to the Council Tax account. Any changes made are transferred to the Council tax system immediately. 

Consultation with residents, Parish Councils and local branches of organisations such as Citizens Advice Bureau took 

place on the potential options for the future of the Council Tax Support Scheme, with a costing and impact analysis 

being undertaken. A CTSS Working Group was set up which was tasked with reviewing the impact and benefits that 

the CTSS had realised on the district, and whether or not to continue with the scheme, or to amend the Rules. 

Discussion at the Working Group and the Resources and Policy Development Group, attended by both Officers and 

Members, concluded with a unanimous decision to retain the Council Tax Support Scheme in its current form, but 

complete further reviews should the economic climate change.  

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 

Risk Control 

design* 

Compliance 

with 

controls* 

Agreed actions 

   Low Medium High 

Failure to correctly process applications for Council 

Tax Support in a timely manner, impacting on the 

Council’s Council Tax income and /or reputation.  

0 (14) 1 (14) 1 0 0 

Total   1 0 0 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 

reviewed in this area.

Page 15 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council Council Tax Support Scheme 6.16/17  

2 ACTION PLAN 

Categorisation of internal audit findings 

Priority Definition 

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality. 

Medium Timely management attention is necessary.  This is an internal control risk management issue that could 

lead to: Financial losses which could affect the effective function of a department, loss of controls or 

process being audited or possible reputational damage, negative publicity in local or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary.  This is a serious internal control or risk management 

issue that may, with a high degree of certainty, lead to: Substantial losses, violation of corporate 

strategies, policies or values, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media 

or adverse regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines. 

 

The table below sets out the actions agreed by management to address the findings: 

Ref Findings summary Priority Actions for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

Risk: Failure to correctly process applications for Council Tax Support in a timely manner, impacting on the 

Council’s Council Tax income and /or reputation.  

1 The Council’s website is 

lacking detailed and 

comprehensive 

information on the 

Council Tax Support 

Scheme, when compared 

to other local authorities.  

 

There is a risk of a poor 

uptake to the Scheme, 

resulting in reputational 

damage or higher than 

forecasted Council Tax 

arrears and resulting 

write offs. 

Low A review of the information 

provided by other local 

authorities will be 

undertaken to determine 

whether there is anything 

additional that can be 

added to the website. 

31 December 2016 

 

 

Benefits Manager  

Page 16 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council / Financial Regulations 7.16/17 

1.1 Background  

An audit of Financial Regulations was undertaken as part of the approved periodic plan for 2016/17. The Financial 

Regulations set a framework of rules for the financial administration of the authority and those carrying out duties with 

a financial implication. In 2016 this document had been updated and management requested an internal audit to 

ensure this review process had been carried out effectively. 

The Council's Financial Regulations were reviewed and updated in April 2016. As part of the review process the 

Council benchmarked their regulations with other District Councils and an internal survey of key users was also 

undertaken. The current Financial Regulations were updated with minor amendments and were approved by Council 

21 April 2016. 

1.2 Conclusion 

Our review identified that there is an adequately designed control framework in place. We have identified two areas 

where controls could be strengthened and have agreed management actions to address these. 

Internal Audit Opinion: 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 

substantial assurance that the controls upon which the 

organisation relies to manage the identified risks are suitably 

designed, consistently applied and operating effectively. 

 

 
 

1.3 Key findings 

The key findings from this review are as follows: 

Financial Regulations are in place and these are up to date having been updated in April 2016, and are available to all 

staff via the intranet. However, review of the Financial Regulations found that they did not detail review dates nor do 

they include a version control. By not including version control or review dates there is a risk that the Financial 

Regulations may be out dated and not reflect the Council's current strategic structure and working practices. There is 

also a risk that staff may refer to an outdated document in error. 

At the time of review NETconsent (the Council’s policy management software) was not being utilised therefore 

monitoring whether employees had read and accepted the Financial Regulations was not possible. By not having a 

monitoring mechanism in place there is a risk that Line Managers cannot monitor whether employees have read and 

fully understood the Financial Regulations and associated policies. 

 

Changes/amendments to the regulations were recommended by the Section 151 Officer to the Governance and Audit 

Committee and approval obtained from Council.  

The Financial Regulations are supported by Guidance Notes that provide details of the underlying processes for the 

implementation of the Financial Regulations.  A copy of the Financial Regulations is available on the Council website 

as part of the Constitution.  

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS - EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Page 17 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council / Financial Regulations 7.16/17 

A Financial Regulations survey was conducted by the Business and Executive Managers (key users) to review the 

contents of the Regulations to ensure that they remained fit for purpose and where possible to make suggestions to 

processes to add value.  

An exercise was also conducted to benchmark the Council's regulation with other District Councils.  

New starters have been provided with Financial Regulations training. A checklist is completed for each new starter 

who is deemed a key user of the Financial Regulations.  

 

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 

Risk Control 

design* 

Compliance 

with 

controls* 

Agreed actions 

   Low Medium High 

Council requirements and regulations are not clearly 

set out, authorised, reviewed and communicated to 

staff, leading to a lack of compliance and possible 

losses due to fraud or error, inefficient processing or 

inappropriate activity.  

1 (13) 1 (13) 1 1 0 

Total   1 1 0 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 

reviewed in this are  

Page 18 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council / Financial Regulations 7.16/17 

2 ACTION PLAN 

Categorisation of internal audit findings 

Priority Definition 

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality. 

Medium Timely management attention is necessary.  This is an internal control risk management issue that could 

lead to: Financial losses which could affect the effective function of a department, loss of controls or 

process being audited or possible reputational damage, negative publicity in local or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary.  This is a serious internal control or risk management 

issue that may, with a high degree of certainty, lead to: Substantial losses, violation of corporate 

strategies, policies or values, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media 

or adverse regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines. 

 

The table below sets out the actions agreed by management to address the findings: 

Ref Findings summary Priority Actions for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

Risk: Council requirements and regulations are not clearly set out, authorised, reviewed and communicated 

to staff, leading to a lack of compliance and possible losses due to fraud or error, inefficient processing or 

inappropriate activity.  

1 Review of the Financial 

Regulations found that 

they did not detail review 

dates nor do they include 

a version control. 

By not including version 

control or review dates 

there is a risk that the 

Financial Regulations 

may be out dated and not 

reflect the Council's 

strategic structure and 

working practices.     

Low The Financial Regulations 

will be reviewed every 

three years or earlier if 

required. 

April 2019 

 

 

Corporate 

Finance Manager  

2 The Financial 

Regulations were 

implemented in April 

2016. In the absence of 

NETconsent the Council 

was unable to monitor 

whether employees had 

read and accepted the 

Financial Regulations. 

 

Medium We will monitor compliance 

with the Financial 

Regulations using 

NETconsent. Compliance 

monitoring has been 

effective since the re-

introduction of 

NETconsent.   

30 September 2016 

 

Financial 

Accountant Team 

Leader 

Page 19 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council / Financial Regulations 7.16/17 

Ref Findings summary Priority Actions for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

 By not having a 

monitoring mechanism in 

place there is a risk that 

Line Managers cannot 

monitor whether officers 

have read and fully 

understood the Financial 

Regulations and 

associated policies.  

   

 

 

Page 20 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council  IT Network Resilience & Recovery 8.16/17  

1.1 Background  

A review of IT Network Resilience and Recovery arrangements was undertaken as part of the approved internal audit 

periodic plan for 2016/17.  

This is the first review of IT Network Resilience and Disaster Recovery arrangements at South Kesteven District 

Council (SKDC), although our previous IT reviews have covered certain aspects of IT including data security, backup, 

and IT policies and procedures.  

SKDC's IT disaster recovery arrangements primarily consist of a virtual Server (VMware) environment with a Storage 

Area Network (SAN) which is replicated to their disaster recovery site in Bourne, approximately 25 miles away from 

the main SKDC offices in Grantham.   There are also several servers backed up to data tapes which are securely 

stored in data safes onsite (separate to where the original data backups take place) and offsite approximately one mile 

away at CCTV Headquarters/ Mowbeck House.    

1.2 Conclusion 

Our review highlighted a small number of controls that need to be strengthened with regards to IT Network Resilience 

and Recovery, including the formal approval, review and update of the IT Disaster Recovery Plan reflecting SKDC’s 

infrastructure changes and offsite recovery facility at Bourne. The IT Disaster Recovery Plan also needs to include a 

comprehensive and formal Business Impact Analysis (BIA) that includes recovery objective metrics.   Furthermore; full 

failover disaster recovery testing is yet to take place and the Backup Policy should be reviewed annually and updated 

to fully reflect the backup and restore arrangements in place.   

We have identified four areas where controls could be strengthened and have agreed management actions to address 

these. 

Internal Audit Opinion: 

Taking account of the issues identified, the Council can take 

reasonable assurance that the controls in place to manage this 

risk are suitably designed and consistently applied. However, 

we have identified issues that need to be addressed in order to 

ensure that the control framework is effective in managing the 

identified risk. 
 

1.3 Key findings 

It should be noted that the key findings and opinion arising from this review are based upon the IT Disaster Recovery 

arrangements in place as at October 2016.  

 

 

 

IT NETWORK RESILIENCE & RECOVERY - EXECUTIVE 
SUMMARY 

Page 21 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council  IT Network Resilience & Recovery 8.16/17  

The key findings from the review are as follows: 

 A review of the IT Disaster Recovery Plan showed there is no business impact analysis where 'long term computer 

failure' has been fully assessed for impact and likelihood.  There is also no further detailed analysis to determine 

Maximum Tolerable Period of Disruption (MTPD) for the critical IT functions at SKDC, including critical systems or 

those given a priority of 1 within the IT Services SLA should a disaster occur. There is an increased risk of business 

disruption due to a lack of business impact information being made available for critical IT systems and 

applications, where an inadequate assessment has been performed. 

 The IT Disaster Recovery Plan reviewed was a ‘draft version 7’ and last updated 24th October 2016; it is yet to be 

finalised and approved by SKDC's Business Continuity Team/ Senior Management and their approval reflected 

within the document history.  Once approved and finalised, offsite copies of the plan need to be made available at 

the recovery site in Bourne and at Mowbeck house where backup data tapes are stored. There is an increased risk 

that there may be unnecessary delays in the recovery of critical IT systems and services whilst documents held are 

either out of date or in draft. 

 Full failover testing to the Disaster Recovery site at Bourne is yet to be performed and minimum disaster recovery 

test frequencies are not documented within the IT Disaster Recovery Plan.  Inadequate recovery testing increases 

the risk that key systems and data may not be recovered as intended and within acceptable and tolerable time 

frames. Once testing commences it is recommended a central register to record lessons learnt from the various 

disaster recovery test exercises carried out by SKDC be maintained. 

 The Backup Policy was found to inadequately document how tape backups are currently performed and checked 

onsite at SKDC as the document had not been reviewed since February 2012.  It also did not include VMware 

backups to disc, only tape backups.  This increases the risk that there may be unnecessary delays in the recovery 

of data where documentation is not reflective of the actual procedures carried out. 

 

1.4 Additional information to support our conclusion 

Risk Control 

design* 

Compliance 

with 

controls* 

Agreed actions 

   Low Medium High 

Loss of network functionality and data. 4 (10) 0 (10) 1 3 0 

Total   1 3 0 

* Shows the number of controls not adequately designed or not complied with. The number in brackets represents the total number of controls 

reviewed in this area.  

Page 22 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council  IT Network Resilience & Recovery 8.16/17  

2 ACTION PLAN 

Categorisation of internal audit findings 

Priority Definition 

Low  There is scope for enhancing control or improving efficiency and quality. 

Medium Timely management attention is necessary.  This is an internal control risk management issue that could 

lead to: Financial losses which could affect the effective function of a department, loss of controls or 

process being audited or possible reputational damage, negative publicity in local or regional media. 

High Immediate management attention is necessary.  This is a serious internal control or risk management 

issue that may, with a high degree of certainty, lead to: Substantial losses, violation of corporate 

strategies, policies or values, reputational damage, negative publicity in national or international media 

or adverse regulatory impact, such as loss of operating licences or material fines. 

The table below sets out the actions agreed by management to address the findings: 

Ref Findings summary Priority Actions for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

Risk: Loss of network functionality and data. 

1 There is no business impact 

analysis where 'long term 

computer failure' has been 

fully assessed for impact and 

likelihood.  There is also no 

further detailed analysis to 

determine Maximum Tolerable 

Period of Disruption (MTPD) 

for the critical IT functions at 

SKDC, including critical 

systems or those given a 

priority of 1 within the IT 

Services – Service Level 

Agreement should a disaster 

occur.  

The Recovery Time 

Objectives (RTO's) have also 

not been determined and 

documented alongside each 

critical IT system and function 

within the Disaster Recovery 

Plan. 

There is a risk of business 

disruption due to a lack of 

business impact information 

being made available for 

critical IT systems and 

applications. 

Medium A formal Business Impact 

Analysis will be conducted 

to identify recovery 

objective metrics (such as 

the Maximum Tolerable 

Downtime) that SKDC can 

bear for the loss of key IT 

systems and services / 

facilities reliant on IT. 

The results of a Business 

Impact Analysis will be 

used to align the recovery 

of IT assets with the 

business and operational 

priorities for SKDC set out 

within their Disaster 

Recovery Plan and in 

conjunction with the 

Business Continuity Plan 

and IT Services – Service 

Level Agreement. 

16
th
 December 2016 

 

Business 

Manager – 

Business 

Transformation & 

IT 

Page 23 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council  IT Network Resilience & Recovery 8.16/17  

Ref Findings summary Priority Actions for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

2 An up to date IT Disaster 

Recovery Plan is not currently 

maintained and version 

controlled.   

 

Up to date copies of the plan 

are not held off site from the 

main SKDC offices in 

Grantham. 

Low The Disaster Recovery 

Plan will be updated, 

finalised and approved by 

SKDC's Business 

Continuity Team/Senior 

Management and their 

approval reflected within 

the document history. 

Once approved, up to date 

copies of the plan will be 

held at the recovery site at 

Bourne and at Mowbeck 

House. 

16
th
 December 2016 

 

Business 

Manager – 

Business 

Transformation & 

IT 

3 The IT Disaster Recovery 

Plan is not tested on a regular 

basis to ensure that IT 

systems can be effectively 

recovered, shortcomings are 

addressed and the plan 

remains relevant. 

 

Inadequate recovery testing 

increases the risk that key 

systems and data may not be 

recovered as intended and 

within acceptable and 

tolerable time frames. 

    

Medium Full test of failover to the 

Disaster Recovery site at 

Bourne will be performed in 

2017. 

Minimum disaster recovery 

test frequency will be 

documented within the IT 

Disaster Recovery Plan. 

Once testing commences a 

central register to record 

lessons learnt from the 

various disaster recovery 

test exercises carried out 

by SKDC will be 

maintained.   

Once completed, the 

register will be reviewed 

prior to the update of the IT 

Disaster Recovery Plan 

documentation to ensure 

all relevant changes are 

reflected within the 

updated Plan. 

8
th
 September 2017 

 

Business 

Manager – 

Business 

Transformation & 

IT 

Page 24 of 25



 

  South Kesteven District Council  IT Network Resilience & Recovery 8.16/17  

Ref Findings summary Priority Actions for management Implementation 

date 

Responsible 

owner 

4 A copy of backup policy was 

provided, and found to 

inadequately document how 

tape backups are currently 

performed and checked onsite 

at SKDC as the document had 

not been reviewed since 

February 2012.  The revision 

history section of the 

document had also not been 

completed to show the date of 

next intended review. 

The Backup Policy does not 

include VMware backups to 

disc, only tape backups. 

Where policy documents are 

not periodically reviewed and 

updated there is an increased 

risk that they may not be 

reflective of actual procedures 

carried out and there may be 

unnecessary delays in the 

recovery of data. 

Medium The Backup Policy will be 

reviewed annually and 

updated to fully reflect the 

backup arrangements in 

place and include how 

backup restores for both 

data files; critical 

applications and servers 

are performed.   

The Backup Policy will 

reflect all methods of 

backups and ideally be 

included as an appendix to 

the Disaster Recovery 

Plan. 

16
th
 December 2016 

 

Business 

Manager – 

Business 

Transformation & 

IT 

Page 25 of 25



 

 

 

SOUTH KESTEVEN DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Follow Up Part 2 

FINAL 

Internal Audit Follow up report: 9.16/17 

15 November 2016 

 
This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed. 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no  

responsibility or liability in respect of this report to any other party. 

Agenda Item 7b



     

 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 1 

CONTENTS 
1 Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................................... 2 

2 Findings and Management Actions ............................................................................................................................ 5 

Appendix A: Definitions for Progress Made .................................................................................................................... 8 

Appendix B: Scope .......................................................................................................................................................... 9 

Appendix C: Review of Completeness .......................................................................................................................... 10 

Appendix D: Actions Not Yet Due ................................................................................................................................. 11 

For further information contact ...................................................................................................................................... 12 

 

 

 

As a practising member firm of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (ICAEW), we are subject to its ethical and other 
professional requirements which are detailed at http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance. 

The matters raised in this report are only those which came to our attention during the course of our review and are not necessarily a 
comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all improvements that might be made. Recommendations for improvements should be 
assessed by you for their full impact before they are implemented.  This report, or our work, should not be taken as a substitute for management’s 
responsibilities for the application of sound commercial practices. We emphasise that the responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests 
with management and our work should not be relied upon to identify all strengths and weaknesses that may exist.  Neither should our work be relied 
upon to identify all circumstances of fraud and irregularity should there be any. 

This report is solely for the use of the persons to whom it is addressed and for the purposes set out herein.  This report should not therefore be 
regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any other party wishing to acquire any rights from RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP for any 
purpose or in any context. Any third party which obtains access to this report or a copy and chooses to rely on it (or any part of it) will do so at its 
own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP will accept no responsibility or liability in respect of this report to 
any other party and shall not be liable for any loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature which is caused by any person’s reliance on 
representations in this report 

This report is released to you on the basis that it shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole or in part (save as otherwise permitted by 
agreed written terms), without our prior written consent.  

We have no responsibility to update this report for events and circumstances occurring after the date of this report. RSM Risk Assurance Services 
LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales no. OC389499 at 6th floor, 25 Farringdon Street, London EC4A 4AB. 

Debrief held 31 October 2016  Internal Audit team Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 
Rob Barnett, Director 
Amjad Ali, Client Manager 
Habiba Rasul, Lead Auditor 
Laura Bamford, Internal Auditor 
 

Draft report issued 

 

15 November 2016 

Responses received 15 November 2016 

Final report issued 15 November 2016 Client sponsor Richard Wyles, Corporate Finance Manager 

Distribution Richard Wyles, Corporate Finance Manager 

Claire Roberts, Management Accountant 

Team Leader 

Tracey Elliott, Governance & Risk Officer 

http://www.icaew.com/en/members/regulations-standards-and-guidance


 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 2 

1.1 Introduction 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2016/17, we have undertaken a review to follow up progress 
made to implement the previously agreed management actions. The audits considered as part of the follow up review 
were: 

• 17.15/16 Gas Servicing  

• 01.16/17 Follow Up 1 

• 02.16/17 Health and Safety Asbestos (including low priority findings) 

• 03.16/17 Taxi Licencing 

Eight ‘medium’ and three 'low' management actions were considered in this review. The focus of this review was to 

provide assurance that all management actions previously made/agreed have been adequately implemented. 

  

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 3 

 

1.2 Conclusion 

 

  

Taking account of the issues identified in the remainder of the report and in line with our 

definitions set out in Appendix A, in our opinion South Kesteven District Council has 

demonstrated reasonable progress in implementing management actions agreed to address 

internal audit management actions. 

                        

We have reiterated management actions where these have not yet been implemented. In addition, 

we have agreed new/revised management actions where appropriate; these are detailed in the 

action plan. 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 4 

1.3 Management Action Tracking 

Management action tracking enhances an organisation’s risk management and governance processes. It provides 

management with a method to record the implementation status of management actions made by assurance 

providers, whilst allowing the Governance and Audit Committee to monitor actions taken by management. 

Management action tracking is undertaken by South Kesteven District Council’s management on a regular basis, with 

an update provided to the Governance and Audit Committee. As part of our Follow-up review we have verified this 

information and completed audit testing to confirm the level of implementation stated and compliance with controls. 

 

1.4 Progress on Actions 

Implementation 

status by review 

Number of 

Management 

Actions 

agreed 

Status of management actions  

Implemented 

(1) 

Implementation 

ongoing (2) 

Not 

implemented 

(3) 

Superseded 

(4) 

Confirmation as 

completed or no 

longer necessary 

(1)+(4) 

Gas Servicing 2 1 1 0 0 1 

Follow Up 1 4 1 2 1 0 1 

Health and Safety 
Asbestos 

4 3 1* 0 0 3 

Taxi Licensing 1 1 0 0 0 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

     

Implementation 

status by 

Management action  

priority 

Number of 

actions 

agreed 

Status of management actions  

Implemented 

(1) 

Implementation 

ongoing (2) 

Not 

implemented 

(3) 

Superseded 

(4) 

Confirmation as 

completed or no 

longer necessary 

(1)+(4) 

High 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Medium 8 3 4* 1 0 3 

Low 3 3 0 0 0 3 

 

*There is one medium action within the Health and Safety, Asbestos report which is not yet due for implementation 

and as such has been recorded in this report to allow for it to be considered at the next follow up review. Further 

details can be found in Appendix D.



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 5 

2 FINDINGS AND MANAGEMENT ACTIONS 

This report has been prepared by exception. Therefore, we have included only those actions graded as 2 and 3. Each management action followed up has been 

categorised in line with the following: 

Status Detail 

1 The entire management action has been fully implemented. 

2 The management action has been partly though not yet fully implemented. 

3 The management action has not been implemented. 

4 The management action has been superseded and is no longer applicable. 

 

 17.15/16 Gas Servicing  

Ref Management action Original 

date 

Original 

priority 

Audit findings Current 

status 

Updated management 

actions 

Priority 

issued 

Revised 

date 

Owner 

responsible 

1 A full formal reconciliation will 
be undertaken annually in 
January, with monthly updates 
being done to ensure that 
changes to stock are correctly 
reflected in all three systems.  

New procedures have been 
developed to spot check the 
reconciliation of properties on 
a monthly basis and a full 
reconciliation has been 
undertaken since the audit.  

Implemented Medium The Mechanical and 
Engineering Manager provides 
a monthly update on services 
which have taken place. The 
update is provided to the Data 
Controller who uploads the 
updated information into the 
asset management database. 
On the 10th of every month IT 
also run a report from the 
housing management system 
which lists all housing stock 
which is coded as having a 
heating element installed (e.g. 
boilers, gas cookers). The IT 
department send this report to 
the Mechanical and Engineering 
Manager who exports it to a 
Property Reconciliations 
spreadsheet. The spreadsheet 
also includes data from the 
asset management database 
and the gas contractor. A 
formula is written into the 

2 A procedure note will be 
created for the gas service 
reconciliations process.  

Medium 15 

November 

2016 

Mechanical 

and 

Engineering 

Manager 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 6 

spreadsheet which 
automatically compares the 
three sets of data (housing, 
asset management and the 
contractor) for consistency. 
However, there is no 
documented process for 
completing the gas service 
reconciliations. In the event of 
staff changes there is a risk that 
reconciliations are not 
completed and un-serviced 
properties go undetected which 
could result in legal action 
against the Council and pose a 
danger to the safety of tenants. 

 

2.1 01.16/17 Follow Up 1  

Ref Management action Original 

date 

Original 

priority 

Audit findings Current 

status 

Updated management 

actions 

Priority 

issued 

Revised 

date 

Owner 

responsible 

2 Building Control 

Reconciliations between the 
Finance System and the 
Building Control System will 
be brought up to date, with a 
record of the officers 
preparing and reviewing the 
reconciliations documented. 

. 

30 June 

2016 

Medium Review of the reconciliations 
between the Finance system 
and the Building Control system 
for July 2016 to September 
2016 found that reconciliations 
were performed for all three 
months; however, there was no 
evidence recorded of the 
officers who prepare and review 
the reconciliations. There is a 
risk that the reconciliations have 
not been adequately reviewed 
and any anomalies may remain 
unidentified and unresolved 
which could lead to a loss of 
income. 

2 Reconciliations are to be 
performed timely with a 
record of the officers 
preparing and reviewing 
the reconciliations 
documented.  

Medium 15 

November 

2016 

Building 

Control 

Manager 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 7 

2.1 01.16/17 Follow Up 1  

Ref Management action Original 

date 

Original 

priority 

Audit findings Current 

status 

Updated management 

actions 

Priority 

issued 

Revised 

date 

Owner 

responsible 

3 Aids and Adaptations 
We will ensure that once the 
Aids and Adaptations 

Policy has been approved by 

the Council we will distribute 

the Policy to all relevant staff 

members. 

August 2016 Medium We were informed by the 
Business Manager Property and 
Development that a key 
member of staff involved with 
updating the policy is on long 
term sick.  Although work had 
commenced to implement this 
action at the time of the audit 
the Aids and Adaptations policy 
had not been fully updated and 
approved. 
There is a risk that Council may 
not approve the policy and 
require amendments to be 
made and that staff are not 
following approved working 
practices. 

2 Once the Aids and 
Adaptations 

Policy has been approved 

by the Council it will be 

distributed to all relevant 

officers. 

Medium 31 January 

2017 

Business 
Manager 

Property & 
Development 

 

4 Tenancy Management 

We will ensure that the three 

yearly cycles of property 

inspections will begin once the 

service review concludes in 

July 2016. 

Sept 2016 Medium We were informed by the 
Business Manager Housing that 
the new staff structure is not yet 
in place and once it is the 
occupancy checks will 
commence in the new year. 
Until an occupancy check cycle 
is implemented there is a risk 
that changes in occupancy are 
not identified timely. 

3 Occupancy checks will 
commence once the new 
staff structure is in place. 

Medium 31 March 

2017 

Business 
Manager 
Housing 

 

 

 

 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 8 

The following opinions are given on the progress made in implementing actions. This opinion relates solely to the 

implementation of those actions followed up and not does not reflect an opinion on the entire control environment 

Progress in 

implementing 

actions 

Overall number of 

actions fully 

implemented 

Consideration of 

high actions 

Consideration of 

medium actions 

Consideration of low actions 

Good 75% None outstanding None outstanding All low actions outstanding are 

in the process of being 

implemented 

Reasonable 51–75% None outstanding 75% of medium 

actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

75% of low actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

Little 30–50% All high actions 

outstanding are in 

the process of 

being implemented 

50% of medium 

actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

50% of low actions made are in 

the process of being 

implemented 

Poor < 30% Unsatisfactory 

progress has been 

made to implement 

high actions 

Unsatisfactory 

progress has been 

made to implement 

medium actions 

Unsatisfactory progress has 

been made to implement low 

actions 

 

APPENDIX A: DEFINITIONS FOR PROGRESS MADE 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 9 

Scope of the review 

As part of the approved internal audit periodic plan for 2016/17 we will review the management actions raised by 

Internal Audit in the following reviews: 

  11.15/16 Insurance 

  13.15/16 Follow Up 2 

  19.15/16 Follow Up 3 

  22.15/16 Tenancy Management 

Limitations to the scope of the audit assignment: 

 In accordance with management’s request, we have only followed up those management actions classified as 
High and Medium risk. Management actions categorised as Low risk are to be followed up separately by Council 
staff. It was also agreed that Management actions made in ‘Advisory’ reviews would not be followed up. 

 The review only covers audit management actions previously made and does not review the whole control 
framework of the areas listed above; therefore we are not providing assurance on the entire risk and control 
framework. 

 Where the indication is that management actions have been implemented, we will undertake limited testing to 
confirm this. 

 Where testing has been undertaken, our samples have been selected over the period since actions were 
implemented or controls enhanced. 

 Our work does not provide any guarantee or absolute assurance against material and / or other errors, loss or 
fraud 

 Any testing undertaken as part of this audit has been on a sample basis for the financial year 2015/16 only or of a 
bespoke sample from a business area. 

 

APPENDIX B: SCOPE 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 10 

APPENDIX C: REVIEW OF COMPLETENESS 

 

2015/16 Reports Followed Up 

Review 

Number of Management actions 
Follow-up 

Report 
Reference Agreed 

To Be 
Followed Up 

Not to Be 
Followed Up 

by IA 

01.15/16 Follow Up (May 2015) 4 4 0  

02.15/16 Food Safety 3 2 1  

03.15/16 Welfare Reform 2 0 2 n/a 

04.15/16 Partnerships 5 3 2  

05.15/16 Homelessness 3 0 3 n/a 

06.15/16 Document Management and CRM 9 0 9 n/a 

07.15/16 Aids and Adaptations 7 3 4 19.15/16 

08.15/16 Waste and Recycling - Inventory and 
Stock 

3 1 2 19.15/16 

09.15/16 Voids Management 3 1 2 19.15/16 

10.15/16 Disposal of Surplus Equipment 2 2 0 19.15/16 

11.15/16 Insurance  3 2 1 1.16/17 

12.15/16 Safeguarding 0 0 0 n/a 

13.15/16 Follow Up 2 3 3 0 1.16/17 

14.15/16 General Ledger 2 1 1  

15.15/16 Green Waste 6 0 0 n/a 

16.15/16 Treasury Management 0 0 0 n/a 

17.15/16 Gas Servicing 7 2 5 This Review  

18.15/16 Elections 0 0 0 n/a 

19.15/16 Follow Up 3 4 4 0 1.16/17 

20.15/16 Planning Fees 0 0 0 n/a 

21.15/16 Risk Management 3 0 0 n/a 

22.15/16 Tenancy Management 3 3 0 1.16/17 

01.16/17 Follow Up 1 12 12 0 This review 

02.16/17 Health and Safety Asbestos 4 4 4 This review 

03.16/17 Taxi Licensing 2 1 1 This review 

 



 

  South Kesteven District Council Follow Up 2 | 9.16/17 | 11 

The table below lists the Management Actions that were Not Yet Due during the time of this Follow up Audit 

Assignment being carried out. 

02. 16/17 Health and Safety Asbestos Management action 

The asbestos data is currently held on a 
property database. Due to system limitations 
the data from the asbestos surveys carried 
out during 2015 and 2016 is held outside of 
the database and as a result staff and 
contractors do not have a single source for 
asbestos information. An implication of this is 
that asbestos information may be missed 
due to checks having to be made from a 
number of sources. 

The Council is investigating this with the software provider to create an 

interface to enable the asbestos information held on Google Tracker to 

be uploaded onto the database. 

 

Due December 2016 

 

APPENDIX D: ACTIONS NOT YET DUE  



 

 

 

Chris Williams, Head of Internal Audit 

Chris.williams@rsmuk.com 

07753 584993 

 

Robert Barnett, Director 

Robert.barnett@rsmuk.com 

07791 237658 

 

Amjad Ali, Client Manager 

Amjad.ali@rsmuk.com 

07800 617139 

 

Kelly Waddoups, Assistant Manager 

Kelly.waddoups@rsmuk.com 

07528 970405 

 

 

 

Address: 

RSM Risk Assurance Services LLP 
Suite A, 7th Floor 
City Gate East 
Tollhouse Hill 
Nottingham NG1 5FS 

 

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT 



Page 1 

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF: CORPORATE FINANCE MANAGER

REPORT NO: CFM401

DATE:    1 December 2016

TITLE: Risk Management – Corporate Risk Register Update

KEY DECISION  OR 
POLICY FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

None

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Councillor Mrs Frances Cartwright
Executive Member Governance

CONTACT OFFICER: Richard Wyles
Corporate Finance Manager
r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk
Tel: (01476) 406210

INITIAL IMPACT
ANALYSIS:

Equality and Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in 
paragraph (7) 
below:

Full impact assessment
Required:

No
FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and 
Democracy link on the Council’s website: 
www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND PAPERS CFM374 Risk Management Annual Report including 
Corporate Risk Register 30 June 2016

The above reports can be located by putting their 
reference number in the search section of the committee 
website via the link below:
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDocSearch.aspx
?bcr=1

1. RECOMMENDATION

The Governance & Audit Committee is requested to:

i) note the contents of this report; and
ii) review and approve the updated Corporate Risk Register (CRR) as attached at 

Appendix A

Agenda Item 8

mailto:r.wyles@southkesteven,gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDocSearch.aspx?bcr=1
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieDocSearch.aspx?bcr=1


Page 2 

2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

One of the key areas for the Committee as part of its terms of reference is to monitor 
and review the risk management arrangements in place, and the activities that are 
being undertaken in order to mitigate those risks.  In accordance with the agreed work 
plan the Committee is presented with the CRR on a six monthly basis.

3. DETAILS OF REPORT 

The Committee last reviewed the Corporate Risk Register at its meeting on 30 June 
2016.  Since that time officers responsible for specific actions have been implementing 
the necessary actions in accordance with the timeline in order to ensure the overall 
risk exposure is reduced.  An updated narrative is shown in the column marked ‘action 
update’.  Following the review, and in line with best practice, it is appropriate to review 
the risk register in its entirety to ensure it reflects the environment (both internal and 
external) the Council is working within and to propose any new risks that may have 
corporate implications.  The outcomes of the review will be presented to the 
Committee at the next risk register update presentation in June.  

The updated Corporate Risk Register, showing the progress against actions, is 
attached as Appendix A.

4. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

None

5. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

This report has no direct impact on the Council’s resources, including finance/ budget, 
people, land/property etc.

6. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA
         QUALITY)

The contents of this report do not require impact analysis.  Any action required to 
address risk identified may be the subject of equality analysis when the action is 
undertaken.

7. ISSUES ARISING FROM IMPACT ANALYSIS

None

8. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None

9. COMMENT OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

These are contained within the report.

10. COMMENT OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 



Page 3 

Members of the Committee are responsible for monitoring actions taken and to be 
taken on behalf of the Council to identify corporate business risks and assess whether 
they are being effectively managed.  It is essential they are kept up to date with details 
of the risks and how they have been mitigated.

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT BUSINESS MANAGER

None

12.     APPENDICES:

Appendix A – Corporate Risk Register



DRAFT   Corporate Risk Register December 2016

Page 1 of 4

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to enhance 
or expand existing controls Action update Timeline

1. Ensuring effectiveness of 
contingency plans/recovery 
plans for key locations/ systems

Context/Notes
This risk focuses on the Council’s failure to respond 
and lead in an effective manner to a major incident 
or event. This could be within the Council itself ie 
major IT infrastructure failure, building fire/flood or 
wider within the Community itself, created via an 
external event or emergency. 

Therefore not achieving the intended outcome or 
making the situation worse, thus wasting resources 
further, contributing to damage/injury, as well as a 
high likelihood of reputation damage and potential 
for legal claims against the Council (even corporate 
manslaughter potential).

 Emergency Plan (EP) maintained and 
regularly reviewed to ensure fit for use  
(Effective)

 Desk top training exercise undertaken 
to test the Business Continuity Plan 
(BCP) facilitated by Lincolnshire County 
Council. Training needs identified and 
addressed  (Effective)

 ICT Disaster Recovery Plan  (Partially 
effective – see action 1.3 & 1.4)

 BCPs and Business Impact Assessments 
that identifies restoration timescales 
for key services, with the premises 
relocation plan dealing with 
physical/site options  (Partially effective 
– see action 1.3 & 1.4)

Likelihood = 1 
x

Impact = 3
=

Medium 3

1.1 Completion of emergency 
plan exercise

1.2 Completion of BCP 
exercise (physical and ICT)

1.3 Complete the premises 
plan linking with the 
updating of ICT Disaster 
Recovery Plan 

1.4 Telephony resilience 
solution to be introduced 

Exercise undertaken and 
lessons learnt actioned

A date has been set for the 
testing of the BCP (Dec 2016)

Completed and audited

Disaster recovery site 
telephony equipment is 
currently being installed along 
with St Peters Hill new 
telephony servers and 
upgrades.  Approximately 30% 
complete on first phase 
working to an outcome of 
telephony resilience over the 
two sites

Complete

Q3 2016-17

Complete

Q3 2016-17

2. Maintaining an effective 
internal control environment 
(able to mitigate against 
material failure)

Context/Notes
This risk focusses on the potential for failure of the 
Council’s core internal control (and governance) 
framework but leading to a significant loss ie 
financial and otherwise eg H&S failing. 

In effect the Council should be in a position to 
mitigate such a risk through rigorous review of 
design and application of the controls, hence 

 Annual internal audit plan developed by 
senior officers and members is targeted 
at key risks areas and responsive to 
new areas of risk  (Effective)

 External audit regime  (Effective)

 Corporate governance, fraud and 
health & safety team resource  
(Effective)

 Quarterly assurance statements 
compiled and reviewed by executive 
managers testing compliance with key 

Likelihood = 2 
x

Impact = 3
=

High 6

2.1 Review and update of key 
polices to ensure they 
match the current working 
environment

2.2 Review of software for 
communicating policy and 
procedure/managing 
compliance

2.3 Development of staff 
training plan in connection 
with core responsibilities 
and duties ie data 

Policy software is now in place 
to track and monitor staff 
compliance with key policies 
and procedures 

A review of online training is 
currently underway

Q3 2016-17

Complete

Q2 2016-17



DRAFT   Corporate Risk Register December 2016

Page 2 of 4

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to enhance 
or expand existing controls Action update Timeline

ensuring that internal audit and other assurance 
activities are appropriately focussed. 

The ramifications of a significant control risk failure 
are substantial, not only with regard to the loss but 
often the rectification costs post event, including 
financial and reputational.

business activities, supporting Annual 
Governance Statement compilation  
(Partially effective –  see action 2.4)

 Range of Performance Indicators that 
monitor internal controls  (Effective)

 Range of polices that underpin the 
control framework – financial 
regulations, counter fraud strategy, risk 
management framework, contract 
procedure rules coupled with staff 
induction training and communication 
of changes when they occur  (Partially 
effective – see actions 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3)

 Regular reporting at member level at 
Governance and Audit Committee  
(Effective)

 Compliance with transparency code  
(Effective) 

protection, financial rules, 
freedom of information 
etc 

2.4 Strengthen level of 
challenge re outcomes 
from quarterly assurance 
statements to ensure that 
areas in need of 
improvement are 
highlighted and actions 
agreed to make 
improvement required

2.5 Review of Local Code of 
Corporate Governance in 
accordance with the new 
code

Use of management 
information system gives 
visibility.  Assurance 
statements are discussed and 
actions agreed

Draft code prepared and 
assessed against new evidence 
criteria.  To be presented to 
Governance and Audit 
committee 21 March 2017

Q2 2016-17

Q4 2016-17

3. Ensuring ongoing resilience and 
quality in third parties ie 
partners, major providers and 
suppliers etc

Context/Notes
This risk relates to the potential for the failure of a 
major supplier of Council services or partner with 
whom the Council co-delivers/ enables provision of 
services or operations. In the event of such a failure, 
either in resilience or quality, then the Council would 
be significantly compromised and would have to 
undertake major remedial work.

 Assessment of bids/tenders through 
scoring of evaluation criteria, financial 
and health & safety diligence checks 
prior to award of contract  (Effective)

 Regular monitoring meetings with 
contractors throughout life of contract  
(Partially effective)

 Some contracts based on open book 
approach to financial monitoring  
(Partially effective)

Likelihood = 3 
x

Impact = 3
=

High 9

3.1 Review of post contract 
award arrangements in 
place for ensuring ongoing 
resilience, quality and 
financial stability of third 
parties
 

Pre-tender criteria are still 
appropriate.  Awaiting 
Procurement Lincolnshire 
analysis of spend to identify 
major areas of spend.  There 
are checks and balances in 
place for all new initiatives

Q2 2016-17



DRAFT   Corporate Risk Register December 2016

Page 3 of 4

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to enhance 
or expand existing controls Action update Timeline

The Council undertake considerable checks pre-
contract award, though may not be as rigorous post 
award. This may indicate some need to strengthen 
the contract management process and how the 
Council can use this to its advantage. 

There does not appear to be a clear picture of what 
might be the key contracts and/or partnerships and 
some further work may be required to establish the 
risk profile of each of these/impact of failure on the 
Council.

Key third party organisations have been identified in 
individual business area Business Continuity Plans 
with, so far, some indication of alternative 
contingencies should that party fail to provide the 
service.  

 Contracts database kept up to date by 
individual business areas and could be 
used to identify key 
contracts/partnerships or suppliers  
(Not effective)

3.2 Review of contracts 
database – use of, and 
maintenance of, data in 
the system and the 
system’s fitness for 
purpose 

Contracts database under 
review. There are plans in 
place to replace the contracts 
register with a county wide 
database to provide 
collaborative procurement 
activities 

Q2 2016-17

4. Ensuring continued financial 
sustainability

Context/Notes
This risk relates to the Council being unable to 
properly execute and achieve its medium term 
financial plan – what would be the underlying causes 
as well as the effects on the Council and how clearly 
are these understood. 

The Council’s financial standing is currently sound 
though it is imperative that the Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP) remains fit for purpose.

The government are likely to continue to pursue a 
self-financing model for councils.

This risk is also closely linked to risk 5.

 Annual review of MTFP updating the 5 
year horizon scan including reserve 
levels and future changes to funding  
(Effective)

 Annual budget setting for revenue and 
capital including funding  (Effective)

 Utilisation of external financial support 
that provides support for funding 
modelling  (Effective)

 Regular budget monitoring reports and 
updates to senior officers and members  
(Effective)

 Development of a Fit for the Future 
(FFF) transformation plan that includes 
actions that will support the closing of 
future budget gaps  (Partially effective)

Likelihood = 2 
x

Impact = 2
=

Medium 4

See 5.



DRAFT   Corporate Risk Register December 2016

Page 4 of 4

Corporate Risk Themes Existing Controls/Plans/Mitigations
(and judged effectiveness)

Residual Risk 
Score

Action to be taken to enhance 
or expand existing controls Action update Timeline

 Treasury Management Strategy to 
ensure the Council are acting within the 
prudential indicators  (Effective)

5. Being effective in a commercial 
environment

Context/Notes
This relates to the Council now taking a more 
commercial outlook in the way in which it provides 
services/does business. This will require a significant 
transformation in culture, behaviour and most of all 
workforce skill set, coupled with potential 
implications on the Council’s standing orders etc. 
(Potential link to risks 2 and 3).

The risk is that the Council will not be able to achieve 
this, or in doing so this impacts detrimentally on the 
Councils core services/ customers ie quality 
deteriorates at the expense of commerciality.

There is also an implication here on the Council 
finances if there is reliance on outcomes from 
commercial activity. 

Does the Council have a clear commercial strategy, in 
particular what it means by commerciality and why 
this is appropriate (a reasonable and regular 
challenge for the Council to ask itself). How prepared 
is the Council culture and skill set/experiences to 
achieve the change that will be required.

 Mandatory Commercial Awareness 
workshop attended by senior managers 
(Effective)

 Potential FFF initiatives put forward for 
evaluation  (Partially effective)

 Local Authority Controlled Company in 
place  (Effective)

 Commercial investment fund created 
(Effective) Likelihood = 2 

x
Impact = 3

=
High 6

5.1  Work with Strategic 
Management Team/ 
Members to establish a 
programme of events to 
create a culture to fully 
support taking initiatives 
forward.  Establish how 
the Council can build and 
increase corporately its 
commercial capacity, 
capability and behaviour 
to deliver

5.2 Follow through on case 
study initiatives discussed 
during senior manager 
“Developing Commercial 
Awareness” workshops 
held in February 2016 
(creation of plan) 

5.3 Develop a clearly defined 
commercial road map that 
identifies expected 
outcomes covering next 1-
5 yrs  

Tailored commercial training 
undertaken by all senior 
managers with tools and 
techniques now being 
adopted.  Process agreed with 
the Design Council approach 
being piloted in some areas.
The cultural elements will be 
addressed in the new People 
Strategy currently being 
developed

The business case for each 
case study initiative was 
reviewed using the tools and 
techniques introduced as part 
of the training received

A suggest methodology is 
being been developed and was 
discussed at Resources PDG to 
identify and agree the criteria 
which would be applied when 
considering a commercial 
venture

2016-17

Complete

2016-17

Controls effectiveness judgement (assessment by Executive Managers)
 Effective = design of control/mitigation is appropriate and is consistently applied
 Partially effective = improvements in design of control and application required to make effective
 Not effective = the control does achieve the desired outcome



Page 1 

REPORT TO GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF:  Corporate Finance Manager 

REPORT NO: CFM398

DATE:    1st December 2016

TITLE: Treasury Management Activity 2016/17 – Mid Year Review 

KEY DECISION  
OR POLICY 
FRAMEWORK 
PROPOSAL:

None

PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER: 
NAME AND 
DESIGNATION:

Councillor Terl Bryant
Resources and Assets Portfolio Holder

CONTACT 
OFFICER:

Amy Oliver, Senior Financial Accountant  
01476 406208
Email: a.oliver@southkesteven.gov.uk 

INITIAL 
IMPACT
ANALYSIS:

Equality and 
Diversity

Carried out and 
Referred to in paragraph (7) 
below:

N/A

Full impact assessment
Required:

No

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION 
ACT:

This report is publicly available via the Your Council and  Democracy link on 
the Council’s website: www.southkesteven.gov.uk

BACKGROUND 
PAPERS

Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17 (CFM358).
http://moderngovsvr:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MID=3203 
Amendment to Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17(CFM386).
http://moderngovsvr:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MID=3344 

1. RECOMMENDATION

Members are asked to note the mid-year activity position of 2016-17 (April 2016 to 
September 2016). 

Agenda Item 9

mailto:a.oliver@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngovsvr:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MID=3203
http://moderngovsvr:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MID=3203
http://moderngovsvr:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MID=3344
http://moderngovsvr:8080/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MID=3344


Page 2 

2. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

Treasury Management is the term used to cover the Council's borrowing and 
investment strategies.  The Council has formally adopted the key recommendations of 
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) Code of Practice 
for Treasury Management in the Public Services.  In line with the Code the Council 
has adopted a treasury management policy statement that requires regular reports on 
treasury and debt management operations during the financial year.

Additionally, under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Council is required to 
have regard to the Prudential Code for Capital Finance including the setting of 
Prudential Indicators.  Relevant treasury management indicators were incorporated 
into the Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17 approved by Council on 29th 
February 2016. 

This report is submitted in accordance with these requirements and provides a review 
of treasury management for the period ended 30 September 2016 and reviews current 
developments. 

The CIPFA Treasury Management Panel promotes the view that Council’s monitor 
performance at least half yearly. In addition to this, a report by the Audit Commission 
entitled ‘Risk and Return’ identifies the need for Local Authorities to report regular to 
members in addition to the annual review.

3.        DETAILS OF REPORT 

This report sets out the following for the 6 month period from 1 April to 30 September 
2016:

a. A review of debt management operations;

b. A review of investment operations;

c. A summary of interest rate movement and investment performance; and

d. An update on the treasury management Prudential Code Indicators.

DEBT MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS

Long Term Borrowing

No additional long term borrowing was required during the first of half of 2016/17.  All 
Council borrowing is with the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB).  The average rate of 
interest paid on the debt portfolio was 2.845%.  Appendix A is a schedule of loans 
outstanding as at 30 September 2016.  Regular reviews are undertaken to review 
redemption costs of natural maturity against new borrowing to settle the outstanding 
debt early.  As part of borrowing requirements around the HRA self financing 
proposals the Council has created two separate debt portfolios which apportion the 
existing debt between the General Fund and HRA.  



Page 3 

Short-Term/Temporary Borrowing
This can be defined as borrowing which is due to be repaid within 364 days.  The 
Council currently has short term borrowing of £3.659m with the next loan due to 
mature in May 2017 to the value of £0.500m at a rate of 9% annually, the remaining 
£3.15m  being principle to be repaid at various points during the year at an annual rate 
of 3.03%.  

INVESTMENT OPERATIONS
The average size of the investment portfolio for the 6 month period was £62.2 million 
compared to an average portfolio size of £51.1 million during the same period in 
2015/16.  These cash balances are used for investment, which include balance sheet 
reserves and provisions, unapplied capital receipts and grants and also cash arising 
from the timing of large receipts and payments.

Investment Activity in the period ended 30 September 2016
The Council operates a diverse portfolio and uses a number of methods to invest its 
reserves which include direct deposit, certificate of deposits, notice accounts and 
money market funds. A schedule of investments at 30 September 2016 can be found 
at Appendix B.

As at 30 September 2016 the Council held short term investments of £59.230 million, 
and £1 million long term investment.  The Treasury Management Strategy stipulates 
that the Council should hold not more than 35% of investments as non specified 
investments and this was adhered during the first half of 2016/17.

Short Term Fixed Deposits – In the period ended 30 September 2016 £15 million of 
short term fixed deposits and £3m of building society deposits were placed ; with £11m 
maturing within the period to September 2016. 

Long Term Fixed Deposits – In the period ended 30 September 2016 £1 million of long 
term fixed building society deposits were placed; with £4 maturing within the period to 
September 2016.   

Service Investments: Local Authority Mortgage Scheme - In July 2012 a fixed rate 
deposit of £1 million was placed with Lloyds Bank on a 5 year term at 3.79% with a 
maturity date of 3rd July 2017. In July 2013 a further £1m was placed with Lloyds Bank 
on a 5 year term at 2.86% with a maturity date of 20th February 2019. All schemes with 
Lloyds Bank have been closed as from the 31st July 2016.  Principle will be returned to 
South Kesteven District Council in full on the maturity dates stated. 

Economic Background
The referendum vote for Brexit in June this year delivered an immediate shock fall in 
confidence indicators and business surveys, pointing to an impending sharp slowdown in 
the economy. However, subsequent surveys have shown a sharp recovery in confidence 
and business surveys, though it is generally expected that although the economy will now 
avoid flat lining, growth will be weak through the second half of 2016 and in 2017.  

The Bank of England meeting on August 4th addressed this expected slowdown in growth 
by a package of measures including a cut in Bank Rate from 0.50% to 0.25% this rate cut 
has continued.  The Inflation Report included an unchanged forecast for growth for 2016 of 
2.0% but cut the forecast for 2017 from 2.3% to just 0.8%.  The Governor of the Bank of 
England, Mark Carney, had warned that a vote for Brexit would be likely to cause a slowing 



Page 4 

in growth, particularly from a reduction in business investment, due to the uncertainty of 
whether the UK would have continuing full access, (i.e. without tariffs), to the EU single 
market.  He also warned that the Bank could not do all the heavy lifting and suggested that 
the Government will need to help growth by increasing investment expenditure and 
possibly by using fiscal policy tools (taxation). The new Chancellor Phillip Hammond 
announced after the referendum result, that the target of achieving a budget surplus in 
2020 will be eased in the next Autumn Statement.  

The Inflation Report also included a sharp rise in the forecast for inflation to around 
2.4% in 2018 and 2019.  CPI has started rising during 2016 as the falls in the price of 
oil and food twelve months ago fall out of the calculation during the year and, in 
addition, the post referendum 10% fall in the value of sterling on a trade weighted 
basis is likely to result in a 3% increase in CPI over a time period of 3-4 years.  
However, the MPC is expected to look thorough a one off upward blip from this 
devaluation of sterling in order to support economic growth, especially if pay increases 
continue to remain subdued and therefore pose little danger of stoking core inflationary 
price pressures within the UK economy.  

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATORS

Prudential Code indicators specific to treasury management are designed to ensure 
that treasury management is carried out in accordance with professional practice.  
Indicators for 2016/17, 2017/18 and 2018/19 were approved by Council in February 
2016 as part of the Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17.

The 2016/17 indicators and actual figures for the 6 months to 30 September 2016 are 
set out at Appendix C.  All investment activity has been maintained within the indicator 
limits.

4. AMENDMENTS TO TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY  2016/17

In September 2016 Governance & Audit approved the following amendments to the 
2016/17 Treasury Management Strategy;

 Increased the timeframe in which the Council can place investments in any 
institution or building society from two to three years.

 Increased the total investments that can be held in a building society from £6m 
to £10m.

 Further amendments were made to the non specified investments sections of 
Strategy to provide clarification and enable the Council to be able to respond to 
changes in the economic decisions as they occur.

These amendments were directly incorporated into the strategy for 2016/17 and will 
also be included in the Treasury Management Strategy for 2017/18. 

5. OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

The Committee could consider an alternative option of retaining the strategy in its 
current format and not include the amendments as presented.



Page 5 

6. RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

This report provides details of the opportunities for Council financial investments.

7. RISK AND MITIGATION (INCLUDING HEALTH AND SAFETY AND DATA
         QUALITY)

Category Risk Action / Controls
Financial risk

8. ISSUES ARISING FROM EQUALITY IMPACT ANALYSIS

None

9. CRIME AND DISORDER IMPLICATIONS

None

10. COMMENTS OF FINANCAL SERVICES

The financial implications are laid out in the main body of the report. The detail presented is in 
line with best practice and current guidance.

11. COMMENTS OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES  

This report provides details of the Council’s performance in respect of treasury 
management against the policy set out as part of the Budget and Policy Framework.  
Members should note the performance and scrutinise any elements to assist the role 
of the Governance and Audit Committee in its review of the Treasury Management 
strategy. 

11. COMMENTS OF OTHER RELEVANT SERVICES

None

13. APPENDICES:

A – Debt Maturity Analysis
B – Investment Maturity Analysis
C – Treasury Management Prudential Indicators
D – Non Specified Investments Categories (Table B) 



Page 6 

APPENDIX A

Debt Maturity Analysis

Public Works Loan Board

 At 30 Sept 2016
  £ 
  

Less than one year 3,659,776.92
  

Between one and two years 3,659,776.92
  

Between two and five years 34,479,330.76

Between five and ten years 15,798,884.60 

Between ten and fifteen years  15,798,884.60
  

Over fifteen years 34,757,546.17

 
Total 108,154,199.97

2.85% (average Rate of outstanding debt) 



Page 7 

APPENDIX B

Investment Maturity Analysis

Schedule of Managed Cash Funds

 As at 30 Sept 2016 Average interest rate
 £ %
   

Short term investment   
   

Natwest SIBA nil 0.000
NatWest 95 Day Notice

Santander 95 Day Notice
Goldman Sachs 6 & 9 Month 

Barclays 95 Day Notice
Barclays FIBCA Call Account   

nil
nil

10,000,000.00
1,000,000.00

  3,000,000.00

0.000
0.000
0.684
0.440
0.250

   
   
 

Federated Prime Rate MMF 5,000,000.00 variable
Insight £ LQF Nil variable

SLI Liquidity Funds 4,320,000.00 variable
BNP Paribas MMF 4,910,000.00 variable

Certificates Of Deposit Nil 0.000
Short term Fixed Investment

Building Societies 
21,000,000.00
5,000,000.00

0.994
1.086

 Close Brothers Limited      5,000,000.00 1.517 
   

Long term investment   
  

Certificates of Deposit Nil 0.000
Building Societies 

Close Brothers Limited 
1,000,000.00

Nil 
1.300
0.000

 
   

Total          60,230,000.00                            0.88 
   
   

Service Investment   
   

Lloyds TSB - LAMS 2,000,000.00 3.320



Page 8 

APPENDIX C

TREASURY MANAGEMENT PRUDENTIAL CODE INDICATORS

Treasury Management Prudential Indicators and Limits on Activity for South Kesteven 
District Council.

Treasury Management Indicators – Comparison for 2016/17 to actual position for the 6 
months to 30 September 2016.

Maturity Structure of borrowing – upper and lower limits

Amount of projected borrowing that is fixed rate maturing in each period as a 
percentage of total projected borrowing that is fixed rate

Actual LimitUpper Limit
% %

Under 12 months 40 3.38

12 months and within 24 months 40 3.38

24 months and within 5 years 100 31.87

5 years and within 10 years 100 14.60

10 years and above 100 46.77

Maturity structure of borrowing – these gross limits are set to reduce the Council’s 
exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and are required for 
upper and lower limits.  

Total principal finds invested for greater than 364 days.  These limits are set to reduce 
the need for early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of 
investments after each year-end.

External debt indicators

Authorised limit for external debt

2016-17 Actual To date 
£’000 £’000

Borrowing 126,765 113,108
   
Other long term liabilities 0 0
Total 126,765 113,108

The authorised limit – this represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, 
and needs to be set and revised by members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, 
while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable.  It is the 
expected maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements.  
This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 
2003.



Page 9 

Operational boundary for external debt

2016-17 Actual To date 
£’000 £’000

Borrowing 109,765 113,108
  
Other long term liabilities 0 0
Total 109,765 113,108

The operational boundary – this indicator is based on the probable external debt 
during the course of the year; it is not a limit and actual borrowing could vary around 
this boundary for short times during the year.  It should act as an indicator to ensure 
the authorised limit is not breached.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the meeting held on 23 September
	6 Annual Audit Letter
	Annual Audit Letter 2015/16
	Contents
	Headlines
	Headlines (cont.)
	Appendix 1: Summary of reports issued
	Appendix 2: Audit fees
	Slide Number 7

	7 Internal Audit Progress Report
	7a Internal Audit Progress Report
	7b Internal Audit Follow-Up Report
	8 Corporate Risk Register Update
	CFM401 Appendix A DRAFT Corporate Risk Register December 2016

	9 Treasury Mid-Year Review



